
904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

LANDING PAGE DESIGNS904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger
COMMUNITIES GROUPS BLOGS RESOURCES

Training Conferences White Papers Web Seminars SQE.com StickyMinds.comrss feeds

SEARCH

JOINSign-in

Virtualization and Disaster Recovery Peer 
Comparison Worksheet

Systems Management Comparison Worksheet

Simplifying the Data Center with Hyper-V and Dell

Modernizing the IT Infrastructure

Virtualized Storage and Windows Server 2008

Unlock your Hidden Data Center

Publications

FIND US ELSEWHERE

Recently I attended a talk during which a leading agile consultant 
discussed implementing agile software development. The 
speaker waxed enthusiastically about self-organizing teams that 
would manage their own work and make most of the decisions 
about building software. The person sitting next to me squirmed 
uncomfortably. After a few minutes, he leaned over and whis-
pered to me, “I’m a manager. With all this talk about self-
organizing teams, what’s left for me to do?”

Moving toward self-organizing teams—whether driven by adopt-
ing agile methods or not—doesn’t mean that all the managers 
are out the door. There’s still plenty of management work to do; it’s just different work. And, for many managers, it 
is also more satisfying work. 

In this article, I describe how self-organizing teams are different from manager-led teams and lay out how that 
changes the manager’s role. 

All well-functioning teams serve their clients, meeting or exceeding expectations. But cross-functional, self-
organizing teams can enhance both creativity and commitment. An effective self-organizing team increases the 
capability of the individuals and the team as a performing unit. Managers of self-organizing teams don’t track 
day-to-day progress or set individual goals. They work to remove obstacles that prevent the team from achieving 
success. They work to optimize the team’s ability to achieve the organization’s goals. 

Most of us have an image in our minds of what “team” means. That image affects how we think about teams, how 
we structure teams, and what we expect of the people on teams.

Manager-led teams are often like ski teams. Each person is selected for her individual skills and abilities as a skier. 
Each excels as an individual. All the members of a ski team are working for a common goal—winning the competi-
tion. Each contributes to success by making it down the hill as fast as she can, while passing through all the gates 
on the course. The coach’s job is to improve individual performance skills. A ski team trains together, but when the 
meet comes, each team member is on her own. They don’t win by working together; it’s the sum of the individual 
scores that wins the meet.

Self-organizing teams are more like soccer teams. Each player has a position on the team based on her skills; how-
ever, the team must work together in order to win the game. In addition, each team member constantly adjusts her 
position and actions to create the best opportunity to score (or to prevent the opposition from scoring). If the team 
doesn’t constantly coordinate and adjust to the current circumstances, it doesn’t stand much chance of winning, 
even with star players on the team. Once the team is on the field, the coach can only observe and diagnose prob-
lems. He directs the team during timeouts and adjusts strategies through substitutions. Most of his work comes 
before the game, building individual skills. But even more importantly, he teaches team members to work together 
to achieve their goal.

Enough with sports analogies. What does this mean for you, a manager in a software organization?
Managers take a step back—but not too far back—so they can analyze performance on the team level, not just the 
individual level. Then, to make it easier for the team to produce software, managers get to work on the organization 
that surrounds the team.
How Much Self-organization Is Right for a Team?

Sometimes I see teams that reject all direction and go their own way, declaring, “We are self-organizing.” They are 
missing an important fact. When someone is paid by a company to be part of a team, that team exists within the 
organizational context. The team has a customer—someone who desires and will pay for its output (or not, in which 
case the team should cease to exist). If a team doesn’t have a customer who eagerly awaits its product, that’s a 
management problem.

On the other hand, some managers hear the word “self-organizing” and believe the team is on its own—that they 
can go into semi-retirement. But that’s not the case, either. In fact, it’s a risky oversimplification. 

I talked to a manager in an organization that had expended millions of dollars to train teams to self-organize and 
self-manage. The division then eliminated all but a few management positions. 

But the division wasn’t seeing greater creativity and engagement as it had hoped. Instead, highly trained technical 
people were leaving the organization in droves. Alarmed, the remaining managers started exit interviews. They 
learned that people were leaving for other companies that had traditional, manager-led teams—not because they 
loved being told what to do, but because they wanted to focus on the technical work that they loved. 

In the rush to embrace self-organizing and self-managing teams, top management had loaded too many manage-
ment tasks onto the teams. Team members were spending less than 50 percent of their time on actual technical 
work. Now that’s a management problem.

In reality, it’s a delicate balance, and the “right” level of self-organization depends on the context.

Most self-organizing teams take on management in these three areas:
• Managing work and monitoring progress
• Managing team membership 
• Setting direction within the organization

What’s a Manager to Do?
Finding your place on a self-organizing team

Better Software » Agile Development

BY ESTHER DERBY
12/13/08

Related Links
Article #1
Article #2
Article #3
Article #4

1 2previous page »

USER COMMENTS

3 more similar posts

Joey McAllister replied to Heather Buckman’s comments

04/06/2009 - 07:08 AM EST 7 comments Unlike it

3 more similar posts

Heather Buckman asks what are the things to consider when you are an outsource tester?

Blog 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM ESTposted by Jeff Boyer 1 I like it!

Jeff Boyer replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. 
replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with 
an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer 

02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM EST 1 I like it!

Reply by Heather Shanholtzer with STF Group
Heather Shanholtzer replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. 
replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer 
here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an 

Esther Derby is a regular StickyMinds.com and Better Software magazine contributor and has presented at STAREAST 
and the Better Software Conference & EXPO. Recognized as one of the world’s leaders in retrospective facilitation, 
Esther often receives requests to work with struggling teams. Esther is one of the founders of the AYE Conference. She 
is the co-author of Agile Retrospectives: Making Good Teams Great. You can read more of Esther’s articles on the 
wonderful world of software at www.estherderby.com and on her Weblog at 
www.estherderby.com/weblog/blogger.html. Her email is derby@estherderby.com. 

Software Quality Engineering, Inc.

StickyMinds.com SQETraining.com Better Software 
magazine STAREAST STARWESTSQE.com Better Software 

Conference & EXPO
Agile Development 

Practices Conference

About Us Privacy Policy Terms of Service Subscription Services AdvertiseHome Contact Us

ADS BY GOOGLE What’s This?

EVENTS & TRAINING

Anaheim,

California

You Can’t Afford to Miss STARWEST 2009
• 

 

Participate in the broadest and deepest range of 
learning sessions available

• 

 

Cultivate relationships with peers and join the tester 
community

•  Visit the largest testing EXPO anywhere

•  Gain insight from top industry experts and speakers

•  Network with peers and industry leaders

SOFTWARE
TESTING
ANALYSIS  & REVIEW

The Greatest Software Testing Conference on Earth

OCTOBER 5–9, 2009

ANAHEIM, CALIFORNIA

DISNEYLAND® HOTEL

 
 

www.sqe.com/starwest

MAXIMIZE YOUR DISCOUNTS AND SAVE UP TO $600.
GROUPS OF 2 SAVE EVEN MORE!

New for 2009!
Testing & Quality
Leadership Summit

STARWEST 2009
OCTOBER 5 - 9, 2009
ANAHEIM, CA
THE DISNEYLAND HOTEL

Discover STARWEST— the 
premier software testing 
conference that brings you 
the most up-to-date 
information, tools, and 
technologies available in the 
industry today. Join industry 
experts and peers in the test and 

ADP CONFERENCE 2009
NOVEMBER 9 - 13, 2009
ORLANDO, FL 
ROSEN SHINGLE CREEK

Discover Agile Development 
Practices and take back the 
latest in agile methods, tech-
nologies, tools, and leader-
ship principles from thought 
leaders who deliver inspiring 
keynote presentations, 
in-depth tutorials, and a wide range 

read more here

read more here

SQE TRAINING
SOFTWARE TESTING TRAINING— 
Choose from twelve 
specialized testing training 
courses. Maximize the impact 
of your training by combining 
courses in the same location 
to create a customized 
training week.

SCRUM MASTER CERTIFICATION

Applying Lean-Agile Software 
Development Practices with 
Scrum. Using the Scrum 
approach, your organization 
will more easily emet market 
and customer needs while 
attaining its ROI objectives for 

www.sqetraining.com

continued

WEBSITE DESIGN

Blog 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM EST 1posted by Heather Buckman I like it!
Full program announced!

News 04/10/2009 - 02:27 PM EST 6posted by Francesca Matteu Unlike
China Denies Cyper Attacks

4 comments I like it!Column 04/01/2009 - 04:36 PM ESTby Payson Hall
Three Pounds of Manure in a Two-Pound Sack

Ending Right
7 commentsFeature 04/06/2009 - 07:08 AM ESTby Jeff Patton Unlike

Find Colleagues

Invite Colleagues

Find Groups

Find Communities

Find Resources

GET STARTED

Training Conferences White Papers Web Seminars SQE.com StickyMinds.comrss feeds

SEARCH

Welcome Alison!

My Profile

My Colleagues

My Communities

My Groups

My Resources

About Me: Bio text here. Bio text 
here.Bio text here. Bio text here. Bio text 
here. Bio text here.Bio text here. Bio text 
here. Bio text here. Bio text here. Bio text 
here. Bio text here.Bio text here. Bio text 
here. Bio text here. Bio text here.Bio text 

Title:

Company:

Website:

email:

Linked In:

Twitter:

CEO

SQE Training, Inc.

www.sqetraining.com
awade@sqe.com

SQETRAINING

SQETRAINING

My Resources
Bookmarked Articles
Timing Matters in Managing Change
by Naomi Karten
Understanding Software Performance Testing
by Dale Perry
Five Ways that Team Members Build Trust with Each other
by Esther Derby

Blogs
Fire hydrant lessons in communication
by Naomi Karten
Date & Time Posted: 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM EST

Social Mediocalypse by Joey McAllister
Broadcast Date: 02/18/2009 - 4:15 PM EST

Path-ological alternatives by Naomi Karten
Broadcast Date: 02/19/2009 - 12:08 PM EST

My Downloads
StickyMinds SoundByte: Danny Faught & Jonathan 
Kohl, 02/16/2009
Agile Development Practices: David Anderson, 
02/16/2009

My Favorite Blogs
StickyMinds.com
SQETraining.com

02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM EST 1 I like it!
Heather Shanholtzer joined Alison Wade’s STF Group

3 more similar posts

Alison Wade commented on the Holly Bourquin’s Discussion Discussion Group #1 
4 comments I like it!04/01/2009 - 04:36 PM EST

Alison Wade wrote on Cathy Clinger’s wall
7 comments I like it!04/06/2009 - 07:08 AM EST

LATEST ACTIVITY

Heather Shanholtzer is looking for a test management tool that displays automated test results.

Alison Wade replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer 
here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. 
replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with 

Heather Buckman asks what are the things to consider when you are an outsource tester?

3 more similar posts

Blog 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM ESTposted by Alison Wade 1 I like it!

Alison Wade replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. 
replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with 
an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer 

Heather Buckman asks Alison Wade what are the things to consider when you are an outsource tester?

Alison Wade replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. 
replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with 
an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer here. replied with an answer 

Sign-OutWelcome Alison!

Update Profile
Join Groups

Invite Colleagues

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

Name 
Here

PEOPLEPEOPLE GROUPS
Get Connected

MY HOME COMMUNITIES GROUPS BLOGS RESOURCES

FIND US ELSEWHERE

SQE EVENTS

Anaheim,

California

You Can’t Afford to Miss STARWEST 2009
• 

 

Participate in the broadest and deepest range of 
learning sessions available

• 

 

Cultivate relationships with peers and join the tester 
community

•  Visit the largest testing EXPO anywhere

•  Gain insight from top industry experts and speakers

•  Network with peers and industry leaders

SOFTWARE
TESTING
ANALYSIS  & REVIEW

The Greatest Software Testing Conference on Earth

OCTOBER 5–9, 2009

ANAHEIM, CALIFORNIA

DISNEYLAND® HOTEL

 
 

www.sqe.com/starwest

MAXIMIZE YOUR DISCOUNTS AND SAVE UP TO $600.
GROUPS OF 2 SAVE EVEN MORE!

New for 2009!
Testing & Quality
Leadership Summit

STARWEST 2009
OCTOBER 5 - 9, 2009
ANAHEIM, CA
THE DISNEYLAND HOTEL

Discover STARWEST— the 
premier software testing 
conference that brings you the 
most up-to-date information, 
tools, and technologies 

ADP CONFERENCE 2009
NOVEMBER 9 - 13, 2009
ORLANDO, FL 
ROSEN SHINGLE CREEK

Discover Agile Development 
Practices and take back the 
latest in agile methods, 
technologies, tools, and 

SQE TRAINING
SOFTWARE TESTING TRAINING— 
Choose from twelve 
specialized testing training 
courses. Maximize the impact 
of your training by combining 
courses in the same location 
to create a customized 
training week.

SCRUM MASTER CERTIFICATION

Applying Lean-Agile Software 
Development Practices with 
Scrum. Using the Scrum 
approach, your organization 
will more easily emet market 
and customer needs while 
attaining its ROI objectives for 

www.sqetraining.com

3 more similar posts

Blog 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM ESTposted by Alison Wade 1 I like it!

3 more similar posts

Blog 02/16/2009 - 10:15 AM ESTposted by Alison Wade 1 I like it!

Software Quality Engineering, Inc.

StickyMinds.com SQETraining.com Better Software 
magazine STAREAST STARWESTSQE.com Better Software 

Conference & EXPO
Agile Development 

Practices Conference

About Us Privacy Policy Terms of Service Subscription Services AdvertiseHome Contact Us

ADS BY GOOGLE What’s This?

In This Issue 
Cover Story

Getting Agile with User-centered Design
Creative software users can’t live without 
by Jon Dickinson & Darius Kumana

Features
Google Web Toolkit
Writing Ajax Application Test First 
by Daniel Wellman

Simple Summaries of Complex Projects
Delivering Meaningful Information 
to Executives
by Payson Hall

VIEW ALL PAST ISSUES

SUBSCRIBE TO BETTER SOFTWARE

904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com



904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com

cathyclinger

WEBSITE DESIGN904.347.7339, tel. | catherinejclinger@gmail.com




